City of Astoria URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (A Component Unit of the city of Astoria, Oregon)

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF ASTORIA, OREGON)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

INTRODUCTORY SECTION	
Agency Officials	i
FINANCIAL SECTION	
Report of Independent Auditors	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Agency-Wide Financial Statements:	
Statement of Net Position	
Statement of Activities	10
Fund Financial Statements:	
Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds	12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds	13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	
Notes to Basic Financial Statements	15

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget and Actua	al
Astor East Fund # 126	.22
Astor West Fund # 127	. 23

REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGUALATORY REQUIREMENTS



(This page intentionally left blank)

.

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (A Component Unit of the City of Astoria, Oregon)

Year Ending June 30, 2022

Astoria Development Commission

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Bruce Jones	Chair	Term Expires 12/31/22
Roger Rocka	Commissioner Ward 1	Term Expires 12/31/22
Thomas Brownson	Commissioner Ward 2	Term Expires 12/31/24
Joan Herman	Commissioner Ward 3	Term Expires 12/31/22
Thomas Hilton	Commissioner Ward 4	Term Expires 12/31/24

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

.

^

Brett Estes	City Manager
Blair Henningsgaard	City Attorney
Kristopher A. Kaino	Municipal Judge
Susan Brooks	Director of Finance & Administrative Svcs
Megan Leatherman	Community Development Director
Stacey Kelly	Police Chief
Dan Crutchfield	Fire Chief
Jonah Dart-Mclean	Parks & Recreation Director
Suzanne Harold	Interim Library Director
Jeff Harrington	Public Works Director

Mailing Address: 1095 Duane Street Astoria, Oregon 97103

www.astoria.or.us



(This page intentionally left blank)

FINANCIAL SECTION



Report of Independent Auditors

The Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Astoria, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency City of Astoria, Oregon

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Urban Renewal Agency, a component unit of the City of Astoria, Oregon, (the Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Agency as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Financial Reporting Entity

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Agency and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Astoria, Oregon as of June 30, 2022 or the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the introductory section but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2022 on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Reporting Required by Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations

In accordance with the *Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations*, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2022, on our consideration of the Agency's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-010-0000 through 162-010-0330. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

shley Osten

Ashley Osteň, Partner, for Moss Adams LLP Portland, Oregon December 20, 2022

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section for the City of Astoria Urban Renewal Agency (Agency) presents a narrative overview of the financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Analysis focuses on significant financial issues, major financial activities and resulting changes in financial position, budget changes, issues related to funds and the economic factors affecting the Agency.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency's basic financial statements which include three components:

- 1. Government-wide financial statements;
- 2. Fund Financial statements; and
- 3. Notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Agency's finances; in a manner that is similar to a private-sector business. These statements are reported on the full accrual basis of accounting. Under the full accrual basis, revenues and expenses are reported in the year earned or obligated.

The Statement of Net Position presents information of the Agency's assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Evaluation of increases or decreases in net position over time can serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information on how the Agency's net position has changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some items resulting in future period cash flows. An example of this is earned but uncollected property taxes.

Both of the government-wide statements indicate the functions of the Agency are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, referred to as governmental activities. The Agency does not have business-type activities in which costs are recovered through user fees or charges.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or functions. The Agency, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Agency are considered governmental funds.

Governmental Funds are used to account for Agency functions that are supported primarily by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition and use of spendable resources, as well as available resources at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating a government's near-term requirements.

Because the focus of government funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet

and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Agency adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison has been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents supplementary information including budgetary to actual comparisons for the Agency's two funds.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position:

The following table reflects a summary of Net Position compared to Prior fiscal Year.

TABLE 1

Urban Renewal Agency – Net Position and Liabilities

	Governmental	Activities	Change
_	2022	2021	+ (-)
Cash and investments	\$ 7,187,821	\$ 8,230,993	(\$ 1,043,172)
Notes receivable	92,257	458,711	(366,454)
Property tax receivable	30,496	65,822	(35,326)
Other accounts receivable	4,772	11,760	(6,988)
Internal balances	20,000	30,000	(10,000)
Total Assets	7,335,346	8,797,286	(1,461,940)
Current and other liabilities Due to Other Governments	131,075	3,879 1,329,112	127,196 (1,329,112)
Total Liabilities	131,075	1,332,991	(1,201,916)
Net Position:			
Restricted for: Urban Renewal	7 204 271	6 026 067	277.204
Improvements-expendable	7,204,271	6,926,967	277,304
Unrestricted	-	537,328	(537,328)
Total net position and liabilities	\$ 7,335,346	\$ 8,797,286	(\$ 1,461,940)

Capital assets are recorded in the financial statements of the City of Astoria, since the Agency is a component unit of the City.

Statement of Activities:

The following table compares revenues and expenses for current year activities.

	TABLE 2		
Astoria Urban	Renewal Agency – Cha	anges in Net Position	
	Change		
	2022	2021	+ (-)
Revenues: General revenues:			
Property Taxes	\$ 312,637	\$ 307,504	\$ 5,133
Interest	40,781	20,754	20,027
Other Revenues	28,219	18,748	9,471
Total Revenues	381,637	381,637 347,006	
Expenses:			
Community Development	(529,403)	(356,719)	(172,684)
Total expenses	(529,403)	(356,719)	(172,684)
Change in net position	(147,766)	(9,713)	(138,053)
Prior Period Adjustment	-	(495,221)	495,221
Net position, July 1	7,464,295	7,969,229	(504,934)
Net position, June 30	\$ 7,316,529	\$ 7,464,295	(\$ 147,766)

TADLES

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Both Urban Renewal Funds account for the accumulation of resources and payments associated with plan expenses related to the adopted plans. Tax increment revenues are deposited to each fund. Consistent with state law, the tax revenues are used to pay for expenses for the identified projects or acquisitions identified in each urban renewal district.

The Agency's net position decreased by \$ 147,766 during the year and is due to reduction of Astor West Urban Renewal Agency collection of tax increment. The Agency Commission did not seek to expand the boundaries nor increase the Maximum Indebtedness. The return of amount distributed in excess plus accumulated interest was required from Astor West Urban Renewal District to Clatsop County for redistribution to overlapping agencies and the amounts Due to Other Governments in the Statement of Net Position was returned in Fiscal Year 2022.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Agency's funds reported combined ending fund balance of \$7,177,931 which is restricted for urban renewal improvements as identified in Astor East and Astor West Urban Renewal Plan Documents.

During the year loans from The Astor Building, LLC were paid in full removing \$ 349,396 from deferred revenues.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Astor East and Astor West Urban Renewal District fund budgets are developed based upon an effort by management to continue identified projects in the urban renewal plans and to have the available funding for work on other projects, as opportunities arise.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Agency incurred capital outlay is capitalized as part of a larger expenditure in the City's Capital Improvement Fund. Capitalized amounts are presented in the financial statements for the City of Astoria and do not appear as an asset of the Agency. There were no expenditures capitalized during the current fiscal year.

Long-term debt. As of year-end, the Agency had no debt outstanding.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The Astoria Urban Renewal Agency continues to be an important partner in economic development within the City of Astoria, providing necessary infrastructure improvements to support continued growth and quality of service to those within the Agency's boundaries. Agency expects property tax revenues to remain steady in Astor East in FY 22/23, no property tax revenues will be distributed in the future for Astor West and the amounts due to Other Governments were returned to Clatsop County at the beginning of FY 21/22. Tax increment is utilized to fund projects and improvements within the Agency's boundaries.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The Agency's financial statements are designed to provide readers with a general overview of the Agency's finances. For questions about the report or additional financial information, contact the City of Astoria's Director of Finance and Administrative Services at 1095 Duane Street, Astoria, Oregon 97103 or visit the City's website at www.astoria.or.us.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include interrelated sets of financial statements as required by the GASB. The sets of statements include:

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

In addition, the notes to the basic financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to a user's understanding of the basic financial statements.

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION June 30, 2022

ASSETS	-	Governmental Activities		
Current assets:				
Cash and investments	\$	7,187,821		
Notes receivable	·	92,257		
Property taxes receivable		30,496		
Intergovernmental accounts receivable		20,000		
Other Accounts Receivable		4,772		
Total assets	\$	7,335,346		
LIABILITIES				
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$	18,817		
Unearned revenue		112,258		
Total liabilities		131,075		
NET POSITION				
Restricted for:				
Urban renewal improvements - expendable		7,204,271		
Total net positon	\$	7,204,271		

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

					Progra	m Rever	nues		(Revenu	Expense e) and Chang et Position
					•	ating	Сар			Total
Functions/Programs	F	xpenses	-	jes for vices	Grant	s and outions	Grants Contrib			vernmental Activities
T dheathan Tograms		лрепаса		1003	Contin		Contine	Julions		
Governmental activities:										
General government	\$	529,403	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(529,403)
Total government	\$	529,403	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-		(529,403)
		eral revenues operty taxes	:							312,637
		erest and inve	stment	earnings	6					40,781
		ner revenues		-						(84,039)
		Total genera	al reven	ues						269,379
		Change	in net p	osition						(260,024)
	Net p	oosition - begi	nning							7,464,295
	Net p	oosition - endi	ng						\$	7,204,271

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Major Governmental Funds

Astor East #126

This fund is used to record expenditures related to capital improvement projects. Major sources of revenue and other financing sources are property taxes and interest earnings.

Astor West #127

This fund is used to record expenditures related to capital improvement projects. Major sources of revenue and other financing sources are property taxes and interest earnings.

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS June 30, 2022

	Astor East #126		Astor West #127		Go	Total overnmental
ASSETS Cash and investments Notes receivable Property taxes receivable Due from City of Astoria Other accounts receivable	\$	2,203,615 18,507 16,263 - 1,136	\$	4,984,206 73,750 14,233 20,000 3,636	\$	7,187,821 92,257 30,496 20,000 4,772
Total assets	\$	2,239,521	\$	5,095,825	\$	7,335,346
LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES Liabilities:						
Accounts payable and other current liabilities Unearned revenue	\$	124 18,507	\$	18,693 93,751	\$	18,817 112,258
Total liabilities		18,631		112,444		131,075
Deferred inflows of resources: Unavailable revenue-property taxes		12,108		14,232		26,340
Total Deferred inflows		12,108		14,232		26,340
Fund balances: Restricted for:						
Urban renewal improvements		2,208,782		4,969,149		7,177,931
Total fund balances	•	2,208,782		4,969,149		7,177,931
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances	\$	2,239,521	\$	5,095,825	\$	7,335,346

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances	\$	7,177,931
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.		
Unavailable revenue-property taxes		26,340
Net position	_\$	7,204,271

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

	Astor East #126		1	Astor West #127		Total overnmental
REVENUES:						
Taxes	\$	339,067	\$	-	\$	339,067
Interest earnings		12,377		28,404		40,781
Miscellaneous		371,746		12,927		384,673
Delinquent ad valorem taxes		5,846		-		5,846
Total revenues		729,036		41,331		770,367
EXPENDITURES:						
General government		152,541		289,577		442,118
Capital outlay		12,216		75,069		87,285
Total expenditures		164,757		364,646		529,403
Revenues over (under) expenditures		564,279		(323,315)		240,964
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):						
Loan Proceeds				10,000		10,000
Total other financing sources (uses)				10,000		10,000
Net changes in fund balances		564,279		(313,315)		250,964
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING		1,644,503		5,282,464		6,926,967
FUND BALANCES, ENDING	\$ 2,208,782		\$	4,969,149	\$	7,177,931

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Amounts reported in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Net change in fund balance - governmental funds	\$ 250,964
Some revenue reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial resources in the governmental funds. The Agency recognized unavailable loans receivable and amounts due from City of Astoria which were not available to satisfy current obligations.	(478,712)
Property tax in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reported on the governmental funds. In the governmental funds, which are on the modified accrual basis, the District recognizes an unavailable revenue for all property taxes levied but not available to satisfy current obligations; however, in the Statement of Activities, there is no unavailable revenue and the full property tax receivable is accrued.	
	 (32,276)
Change in net position of governmental activities	\$ (260,024)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The basic financial statements of the Agency have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Description of Reporting Entity

The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Astoria was established June 18, 1979, under the provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes, Section 457. The City Council of the City of Astoria is the governing body of the Agency wherein any act of the Council in its capacity as the Agency shall be considered the act of the Agency only and not the City of Astoria. The Agency through the Astoria Development Commission outlined a plan for the rehabilitation, conservation, development or redevelopment of the Urban Renewal Area. This area was determined to be a blighted and deteriorated area which was detrimental to the safety, health and welfare of the inhabitants and users and which impaired the economic values and tax revenues, had harmful effects on rehabilitation, conservation, development and redevelopment of the area as a whole.

The Agency is a legally separate entity governed by the City Council. The Agency's Board of Directors is not financially accountable for any other governmental entity. Financial accountability is determined in accordance with criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, primarily on the basis of authority to appoint voting majority of an organization's governing board, ability to impose its will on that organization, the potential for that organization to provide specific benefits or impose specific financial burdens and that organization's fiscal dependency. The Agency is a component unit of the City of Astoria and, as such is included in the financial statements of the City of Astoria for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Agency has no component units.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The Agency's financial operations are presented at both the agency-wide and fund financial levels. All activities of the Agency are categorized as governmental.

Agency-wide financial statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the Agency as a whole. All activities of the Agency are categorized as governmental activities.

The Agency uses funds to report its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions and activities.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the Agency's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

B. Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Fund financial statements

These statements display information at the individual fund level. Each fund is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Funds are classified and summarized as governmental or proprietary. Currently the Agency has only governmental fund types.

C. Basis of Presentation

The financial transactions of the Agency are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The GASB 34 model sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and proprietary combined) for the determination of major funds. For purposes of presentation, all funds are presented as major funds.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded with the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus.

The Agency-wide financial statements are reported using the *economic resources measurement focus* and the *full accrual basis of accounting*. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the *current financial resources measurement focus* and the *modified accrual basis of accounting*. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Agency considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, long-term compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the agency-wide statements, a reconciliation is necessary to explain the adjustments needed to transform the fund financial statements into the agency-wide presentation.

E. Cash and Investments

The Agency considers cash equivalents as all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less. Investments included in cash and cash equivalents are reported at fair value.

F. Receivables and Property Tax Calendar

Uncollected property taxes receivable, which have been collected within sixty days following year-end are considered measurable and available and are recognized as revenue. The remaining balance is recorded as unavailable revenue because it is not deemed available to finance operations of the current period. Real and personal property taxes are levied in July of each fiscal year. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1, and are payable in three installments on November 15, February 15, and May 15. All property taxes are billed and collected by Clatsop County and remitted to the Agency. Uncollected taxes, including delinquent amounts, are considered substantially collectible or recoverable through liens, and accordingly no allowance for uncollected taxes has been established.

G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) until then. There are no deferred outflows recorded at June 30, 2022.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Agency has two qualifying deferred inflows as of June 30, 2022: Unavailable revenue for property taxes of \$ 26,340 and notes receivable not deemed available to finance operations of \$ 92,258 and \$ 20,000 due from City of Astoria. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflows of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

H. Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Agency is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five components – non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

- Non-Spendable Includes items not immediately converted to cash, such as prepaid items and inventory.
- Restricted Includes items that are restricted by external creditors, grantors or contributors, or restricted by legal constitutional provisions.
- Committed Includes items committed by the Agency Board, by formal board action. Commitments of fund balance must be made prior to the end of the fiscal year.
- Assigned Includes items assigned for specific uses, authorized by the Agency. Assignments of fund balance can be done at any time, including after the fiscal year end date.
- Unassigned This is the residual classification used for those balances not assigned to another category.

There were no non-spendable, committed, assigned or unassigned fund balances at June 30, 2022.

I. Use of Restricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned, and unassigned) are available for use it is the Agency's policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed.

J. Use of Estimates

In preparing the Agency's financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

K. Internal Activity

Internal activity is eliminated in the agency-wide Statement of Activites.

(2) Budgetary Information

On or before June 30 of each year, the Agency enacts a resolution approving the budget, appropriating the expenditures, and levying the property taxes. Prior to enacting this resolution, the proposed budget is presented to a budget committee consisting of members of the Agency Board of Directors and a like number of interested citizens. The budget committee presents the budget to the Agency Board of Directors for budget hearings prior to enactment of the resolution. The Agency budgets all funds as required by Oregon Local Budget Law.

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the legal level of control by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. Expenditure categories of personnel services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service transfers, and contingency are the legal level of control for all funds. The detail budget document, however, is required to contain more specific information for the above mentioned expenditure categories. Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget. A supplemental budget requires hearings before the public, publications in newspapers, and adoption by the Agency's Commission. Management may modify original and supplemental budgets by the use of appropriation transfers between the legal levels of control within a fund. Such transfers require approval by the Agency's Commission. Management may not amend the budget without seeking the approval of the Commission. Appropriations lapse as of year-end.

(3) Cash and Investments

LGIP is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. The Oregon Revised Statutes and the Oregon Investment Council govern the Pool's investment policies. The State Treasurer is the investment officer for the Pool and is responsible for all funds in the Pool. These funds must be invested and the investments managed as a prudent investor would, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Investments in the fund are further governed by portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-term Funds Board, which establish diversification percentages and specify the types of maturities of investments. The Oregon Audits Division of the Secretary of State's Office audits the Pool annually. LGIP is not rated by a national rating service. The financial statements are available at https://www.oregon.gov/treasury/public-financial-Statement-June-30-2022.pdf.

At June 30, 2022 investments included in cash and cash investments consist of the following:

	Weighted Average Maturity (Years)	Amortized Cost which approximates Fair Value
Investments in the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (the Pool)	0.00	\$ 7,187,821
Total Cash equivalents	0.00	\$ 7,187,821

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (A component unit of the City of Astoria)

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(3) Cash and Investments (continued)

Interest rate risk

In accordance with its investment policy, the government manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments portfolio to less than six months. The Agency does not have a formal investment policy that limits investments maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk

State statutes authorize the Agency to invest in general obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, and the State Treasure's Oregon Local Government Investment Pool, among others. The Agency has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. The Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations, but is not regulated by other laws, organizations or regulations. The reported value of the Pool is the same as the fair value of Pool shares. Investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). The State Treasure's Oregon Local Government Investment Pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is unrated.

Concentration of credit risk

The Agency does not currently have an investment policy outside of investing in LGIP which would require recognition of credit risk concentration in any single corporate entity and its affiliates or subsidiaries that is in excess of five percent of the City's total investments (ORS 294.935).

Custodial credit risk – deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency's deposits may not be returned. The Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for the Agency's deposits with financial institutions up to \$250,000 each for aggregate of all non-interest bearing accounts and the aggregate of all interest bearing accounts at each institution. Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage with institutions participating in the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program are considered fully collateralized. As of June 30, 2022, none of the Agency's bank balances were exposed to credit risk.

Custodial credit risk – investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Agency will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Agency did not have investments of this type during fiscal year 2021-22 nor did it have any investments of this type at June 30, 2022. The Agency maintains a cash and cash equivalents pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Cash and cash investments."

(4) Notes Receivable

As economic development activities, the Astor East (AEURD) and Astor West (AWURD) Urban Renewal Districts have entered into agreements to loan two entities amounts to upgrade their facilities. AEURD has a loan receivable of \$ 18,507 from Liberty Restoration, Inc. for improvement to the Liberty Theatre stage. AWURD has a loan receivable of \$ 73,750 from Mark Cary for improvements to the facility referred to as the "Red Building" and a \$ 20,000 amount due from the Maritime Memorial Fund of the City of

(4) Notes Receivable (continued)

Astoria for expansion of the memorial wall located within Astor West Urban Renwal District. The Liberty Restoration, Inc. and Mark Cary loans are administered for the districts by Craft3. Loan payments are current as of June 30, 2022.

(5) Long-term Debt

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Agency did not have any long-term liability activity.

(6) Risk Management

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss and insurance coverage is provided by the City of Astoria, which carries commercial insurance. Settled claims resulting from risks of loss have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

(7) **Property Tax Limitations**

The voters of the State of Oregon imposed a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and nonschool government operations. School operations include community colleges, local school districts and education service districts. The limitation provides that property taxes for non-school operations are limited to \$ 10.00 for each \$ 1,000 of property market value. This limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt.

The voters further reduced property taxes by replacing the previous constitutional limits on tax bases with a rate and value limit in 1997. This reduction is accomplished by rolling property values back to their 1995-96 values less 10% and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain exceptions. Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions. The State Constitution sets restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues, and requires the State to minimize the impact to school districts from the impact of the tax cuts.

(8) Other Information

The City of Astoria invoices the Agency for services provided. This includes amounts associated with personnel costs in support of agency activities.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements.

Budgetary Comparison Schedules Government-Wide Financial Statements

- Astor East #126
- Astor West #127

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

ASTOR EAST #126 SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

		Budget						Variance To Final
	Original		Final		` Actual		Budget	
REVENUES:								
Taxes	\$	257,000	\$	257,000	\$	339,067	\$	82,067
Interest earnings		7,700		7,700		12,377		4,677
Gifts, bequests, and grants		42,841		42,841				(42,841)
Miscellaneous		58,240		58,240		371,746		313,506
Delinquent ad valorem taxes		8,100		8,100	<u></u>	5,846		(2,254)
Total revenues		373,881		373,881		729,036		355,155
EXPENDITURES:								
Materials and services		303,070		303,070 (*	1)	152,541		150,529
Capital outlay		1,250,000		1,250,000 (*	1)	12,216		1,237,784
Contingency		200,000		200,000 (*	1)	-		200,000
Total expenditures		1,753,070		1,753,070		164,757		1,588,313
Net change in fund balance	(1,379,189)		(1,379,189)		564,279		1,943,468
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING		1,541,000		1,541,000		1,644,503		103,503
FUND BALANCE, ENDING	\$	161,811		161,811	\$	2,208,782	\$	2,046,971

(1) Appropriation level

ASTORIA URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (a component unit of the City of Astoria)

ASTOR WEST #127 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

		Budget Original Final				Actual			Variance To Final Budget		
REVENUES:		•									
Interest earnings	\$	25,000	\$	25,000		\$	28,404	\$	3,404		
Gifts, bequests, and grants		154,227		154,227			-		(154,227)		
Miscellaneous		12,130		12,130			12,927		797		
Total revenues	191,357		191,357			41,331			(150,026)		
EXPENDITURES:											
Materials and services		341,650	341,650		(1)		289,577		52,073		
Capital outlay		4,900,000		4,900,000	(1)		75,069		4,824,931		
Contingency		250,000		250,000	(1)		-		250,000		
Total expenditures		5,491,650		5,491,650			364,646		5,127,004		
Revenues over (under) expenditures OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):		(5,300,293)		(5,300,293)			(323,315)		4,976,978		
Loan Proceeds		10,000		10,000			10,000				
Total other financing sources (uses)		10,000		10,000			10,000				
Net change in fund balance		(5,290,293)		(5,290,293)			(313,315)		4,976,978		
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING		5,362,000		5,362,000			5,282,464		(79,536)		
FUND BALANCES, ENDING	\$	71,707	\$	71,707		\$	4,969,149	\$	4,897,442		

(1) Appropriation level



(This page intentionally left blank)

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS



Report of Independent Auditors Required by Oregon State Regulations

The Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Astoria, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency City of Astoria, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Urban Renewal Agency, a component unit of the City of Astoria, Oregon, (the Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Agency's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2022.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's basic financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 162-010-0000 to 162-010-0330, of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to, the following:

- Accounting records and internal control
- Public fund deposits
- Budget
- Insurance and fidelity bonds
- Programs funded from outside sources
- Investments
- Public contracts and purchasing

In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Agency was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including the provisions of ORS as specified in OAR 162-010-0000 through 162-010-0330 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and management of the Urban Renewal Agency and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

shley Oster

Ashley Osten,⁰Partner, for Moss Adams LLP Portland, Oregon December 20, 2022